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          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Good

          3  afternoon. I'm Council Member Madeline Provenzano,

          4  Chair of the Committee on Housing and Buildings.

          5                 Today we are conducting hearings on

          6  two proposed Intro's. First one is, Proposed Intro

          7  No. 4A, a local law to amend the administrative code

          8  of the City of New York in relation to requiring the

          9  installation of carbon monoxide detecting devices in

         10  buildings classified in occupancy groups G, H2, J1,

         11  J2 and J3. Proposed Intro No. 272A, a local law to

         12  amend the administrative code of the City of New

         13  York in relation to awnings.

         14                 Proposed Intro No. 4A would require

         15  the installation of carbon monoxide detecting

         16  devices in apartments, houses, hospitals and schools

         17  where a fossil fuel- burning furnace or boiler is

         18  located. And in certain buildings, in close

         19  proximity to a source of carbon monoxide.

         20                 Carbon monoxide is an odorless,

         21  colorless gas, that results from incomplete

         22  combustion of fuels. Although, the initial symptoms

         23  of carbon monoxide poisoning closely match those of

         24  the flu, carbon monoxide poisoning can be fatal.

         25  Early warning of a carbon monoxide leak is crucial
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          2  so that victims can move to fresh air before they

          3  lose consciousness. Carbon monoxide detecting

          4  devices are readily available to consumers and

          5  several models are priced below $30.

          6                 In the months of January and

          7  February, 2004, four New York City residents were

          8  killed by carbon monoxide leaks in two buildings,

          9  one in Manhattan and one in the Bronx. Among the

         10  other episodes this winter were the evacuation of 60

         11  people and the hospitalization of 27 in an incident

         12  on University Avenue in the Bronx and the evacuation

         13  of five homes in the Carol Garden section of

         14  Brooklyn.

         15                 Proposed Intro. No. 4A would require

         16  at least one carbon monoxide detecting device within

         17  15 feet of sleeping rooms in Class A multiple

         18  dwellings and private dwellings. Building owners

         19  would be responsible for installing DOB approved

         20  devices while occupants would keep and maintain the

         21  devices in good repair. Owners would be entitled to

         22  $25.00 per device reimbursement by tenants. The

         23  place for the carbon monoxide detecting devices in

         24  hospitals and schools will be determined by rules

         25  promulgated by various City agencies.
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          2                 Intro No. 4A would also require that

          3  at least one approved and operational carbon

          4  monoxide detecting device be installed in buildings

          5  classified in occupancy group G and H2. Group G

          6  includes educational facilities and H2 includes

          7  hospitals and other institutions with incapacitated

          8  residents. The bill would permit the use of approved

          9  combination type devices that can be used for

         10  detection of carbon monoxide and smoke detection.

         11                 Proposed Intro No. 242A would re-

         12  establish and extend the moratorium on the

         13  enforcement of awnings that exist in violation of

         14  the zoning resolution. After amendments or changes

         15  are adapted, the Commissioner of Buildings is

         16  charged with developing a program to educate the

         17  public regarding these amendments or changes.

         18                 The extension on the moratorium would

         19  run from January 14, 2004 to July 14, 2006 or the

         20  date that the educational program concludes. But

         21  that date should be later than July 14, 2006.

         22                 Our first witness today will be from

         23  the Department of Buildings, Stephen Kramer, Chief

         24  of Staff New York City Buildings Department. And I

         25  guess we'll do the three of you and then we have
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          2  James Jackson, Chief of Fire Prevention from FDNY.

          3  Are you going to testify too? Okay. So, Steve,

          4  you're on. Just before you do that, let me introduce

          5  my Committee that's here. I'm sorry. All of them are

          6  to my left, Councilwoman Latitia James, Councilwoman

          7  Melinda Katz, Councilman Leroy Comrie, Councilman

          8  Tony Avella, and Councilman Joel Rivera.

          9                 MR. KRAMER: Good afternoon,

         10  Chairperson Provenzano and members of the Committee

         11  on Housing and Buildings. My name is Stephen Kramer

         12  and I'm the Chief of Staff of the City's Department

         13  of Buildings. I'm appearing on behalf of the

         14  Department's Commissioner, Patricia J. Lancaster,

         15  who is unavailable for testimony today. On her

         16  behalf, I thank you for this opportunity to testify

         17  in support of Intro 4A of 2004, requiring the

         18  installation of carbon monoxide detectors in

         19  residential, school and hospital/nursing home

         20  occupancies.

         21                 We believe that adoption of Intro 4A

         22  will significantly contribute to the safety of New

         23  Yorkers by requiring the installation of devices

         24  that provide protection against one of the most

         25  dangerous of indoor pollutants, carbon monoxide, in
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          2  residences, schools and institutional occupancies.

          3                 As Chairman Provenzano mentioned,

          4  carbon monoxide is a colorless, odorless gas. It is

          5  produced as the result of incomplete burning of

          6  carbon containing fuels. It is lighter than air and

          7  therefore, tends to flow upward from furnace rooms

          8  through openings such as pipe chases. Although,

          9  carbon monoxide is dangerous, CO poisoning can be

         10  prevented by taking common- sense steps such as

         11  ensuring that qualified professionals install fuel

         12  burning equipment and by keeping appliances clean

         13  and well- maintained. Nevertheless, when appliances

         14  do emit dangerous levels of CO, carbon monoxide

         15  detectors provide an additional layer of protection.

         16                 Accordingly, Intro 4A requires that

         17  every dwelling unit in a residential building with a

         18  fossil- fuel burning furnace or a boiler and every

         19  dwelling unit in a building in close proximity to a

         20  carbon monoxide source have a CO detector within 15

         21  feet of every room where occupants can legally

         22  sleep.

         23                 In addition, the bill requires that

         24  every school and every hospital or nursing home

         25  install CO detectors. The number of CO detectors
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          2  required as well as their placement are to be

          3  specified in department rules that will be written

          4  in consultation with the Fire Department and

          5  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene or DOH, so

          6  that the needs of the various occupancies and

          7  building design arrangements can be accommodated.

          8                 In addition, to ensure that carbon

          9  monoxide devices meet minimum acceptable safety

         10  standards, while remaining economically feasible for

         11  the owners, the bill authorizes the Department in

         12  consultation with the Fire Department and DOH to

         13  specify the specific types of devices that can be

         14  utilized. The bill further authorizes the

         15  Department, as well as the Fire Department,

         16  Department of Health and Department of Housing

         17  Preservation and Development to issue violations

         18  when the CO detector installation standards are not

         19  met.

         20                 The bill also amends the Housing

         21  Maintenance Code to require that owners of Class A

         22  multiple dwellings to install the devices, to

         23  provide notice of and certain pieces of information

         24  about the devices to the occupants and to replace

         25  the detectors when they've been removed by a prior
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          2  occupant or otherwise become inoperable. The bill

          3  also requires the owners of one and two family

          4  dwellings to install CO detectors in the dwellings

          5  if they are occupied by non- owners. The owner must

          6  also provide notice of and certain pieces of

          7  information about the devices to the non- owner

          8  occupants and to replace the detectors when they've

          9  been removed by a prior occupant or become

         10  inoperable.

         11                 In turn, the bill requires that an

         12  occupant replace the device that is removed or

         13  rendered inoperable during his or her occupancy. It

         14  requires that an occupant reimburse the owner for

         15  the cost of the device.

         16                 Regarding Class B multiple dwellings,

         17  the owners are required to install appropriate

         18  detection devices, keep them in good repair and

         19  replace them when appropriate. The installation of

         20  CO detectors is required by this bill can save lives

         21  by alerting a building's occupants of danger before

         22  gas levels become hazardous.

         23                 I'd like to reiterate that the

         24  potential of dangerous levels of CO in the home can

         25  be significantly reduced by taking certain basic
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          2  safety measures. Specifically, we strongly recommend

          3  that all fuel burning equipment be installed by

          4  qualified professionals and fuel burning equipment

          5  be properly cleaned and regularly maintained.

          6                 However, in the event an appliance

          7  becomes a source of excessive CO, the detectors

          8  mandated by the bill provide an additional line of

          9  defense. Accordingly, we support Intro 4A and urge

         10  you to vote it into law.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         12  James, would you like to give your testimony?

         13                 MR. JACKSON: Good afternoon,

         14  Chairperson Provenzano and Council Members. I want

         15  to thank you for the opportunity to speak to you

         16  about an important bill that amends the New York

         17  City Administrative Code to require the installation

         18  of carbon monoxide detecting devices in residential

         19  and certain other buildings.

         20                 The Fire Department supports this

         21  legislation for a number of reasons. Carbon monoxide

         22  also known as CO is a colorless, odorless, tasteless

         23  and non- irritating toxic gas sometimes called the

         24  silent killer. It is completely undetectable by

         25  human senses. As a result, hundreds of people are
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          2  killed each year nation wide by accidental CO

          3  poisoning and thousands are permanently injured.

          4  There is an increased risk of CO poisoning in the

          5  winter months when well- insulated, air- tight homes

          6  and malfunctioning heating equipment can produce

          7  dangerously high and potential deadly concentrations

          8  of CO.

          9                 We have witnessed the horror of this

         10  threat in 2003 alone, 13 people in New York City

         11  lost their lives in CO related accidents and scores

         12  more had to be evacuated from their homes. The Fire

         13  Department believes that our first line of defense

         14  is prevention. Prevent or minimize the potential for

         15  exposure to CO gases by: Having a home heating

         16  system, fuel- burning appliances, flues and chimneys

         17  inspected, cleaned and serviced annually by

         18  qualified technicians. Refrain from using ovens and

         19  gas ranges to heat your home; not burning charcoal

         20  inside your home; and never idling your car inside a

         21  garage.

         22                 Our Fire Safety Education teams are

         23  constantly getting the word out to the public about

         24  these measures. The second line of defense against

         25  the dangers of CO is to install a CO detector.
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          2  Properly installed and working CO detectors can

          3  provide an early warning of the presence of CO

          4  allowing sufficient time for occupants to escape or

          5  to take appropriate action before the deadly gas can

          6  build up to dangerous levels.

          7                 The proposed legislation will ensure

          8  that lives will be saved and we fully support its

          9  enactment. Please keep in mind that the Fire

         10  Department distributes thousands of donated smoke

         11  detectors each year to the public. We rely on the

         12  generosity of manufacturers and retailers of these

         13  detectors to carry out this program. In order to

         14  facilitate compliance and awareness, we would like

         15  to distribute CO detectors as well, but they are

         16  more costly than smoke detectors. If the City

         17  Council is interested in allocating any of its

         18  discretionary funds to help us in our efforts, the

         19  FDNY would very happily accept donations of CO

         20  detectors or allocations from the Council to

         21  purchase them.

         22                 I thank you for the opportunity to

         23  speak to you today about this proposed legislation.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you. I

         25  have a couple of questions. Home heating systems, is
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          2  the danger the same via gas or oil?

          3                 MR. JACKSON: Yes. The system has to

          4  be properly maintained. A unit and the flue so it

          5  can exhaust properly and it has to be serviced so

          6  that it's burning at its optimum efficiency and to

          7  minimize the creation of any CO.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I imagine

          9  most folks have like an annual service, someone

         10  comes in to maintain it. When that happens, would

         11  the person that does that maintenance know if there

         12  was a problem? I mean, I don't know if that's a

         13  question for you. But I understand the oil heating

         14  people are not going to testify.

         15                 MR. JACKSON: I believe that

         16  technicians, this is just my own knowledge, that

         17  technicians that service this type of equipment have

         18  equipment that can measure the CO output of the

         19  heating appliances.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay. Thank

         21  you. Council Member Rivera has a question.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Thank you very

         23  much, Madam Chair. Thank you, gentlemen for coming

         24  here to testify today on a very important issue.

         25  Obviously, we heard many lives that not only have
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          2  been lost, but also have been injured by carbon

          3  monoxide poisoning and also people that have been

          4  taken to the hospitals for the poison as well.

          5                 My question is the fact that Chief,

          6  you stated that carbon monoxide, CO detectors are

          7  very expensive. I do know that they do have

          8  combination smoke and carbon monoxide detectors. Are

          9  those as effective as the sole CO detector or is

         10  there not preferential?

         11                 MR. JACKSON: I  believe that any

         12  detector if it receives a UL rating would respond

         13  and operate within the required limits. If any type

         14  of detector is purchased that does not have rating,

         15  I could not speak for its effectiveness.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: If it has the

         17  UL rating, then it is preferred to be used?

         18  Obviously, right?

         19                 MR. JACKSON: That's correct. UL sets

         20  a standard for the operation of those devices.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Because I've

         22  actually seen plenty and in recent visits to Costco,

         23  I've seen that they have the dual combination of

         24  smoke detectors and CO detectors that are actually

         25  reduced the price instead of you buying one on one.
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          2  If you buy the smoke detector and the carbon

          3  monoxide separately, it comes to about $70 or if you

          4  buy them combined, it is actually lower than $40. I

          5  think that everyone should be aware that's a

          6  possibility to actually do that.

          7                 Also, the fact you mentioned in here

          8  you would like for the City Council to help you in

          9  getting the CO detectors. Beside the discretionary

         10  fund, is there anyway we can reach out to the

         11  corporations? Do you have a list of the corporations

         12  that I should create them so that we can try to

         13  reach out to them, to persuade them?

         14                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Our Fire Safety

         15  Education Program has a wide variety of contacts and

         16  they're actively engaged as I'm sure you know in

         17  terms of distribution of smoke detectors. This is

         18  obviously a new area. I don't know if this is the

         19  same group of manufacturers or different group of

         20  manufacturers, but I think that certainly would be

         21  possible to share that information with you and see

         22  whether they would be willing to contribute one or

         23  both of each type. But, yes, we could provide you

         24  with the sources that we presently obtain them.

         25                 I think a lot of corporations that
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          2  aren't necessarily manufacturers also purchase them

          3  and donate them. So, there is a number of ways that

          4  we receive smoke detectors. And we hope that similar

          5  arrangements can be made with regard to carbon

          6  monoxide detectors.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: If you could

          8  get that information, we would definitely like to be

          9  helpful in ensuring that we get corporations to be

         10  responsive and contribute and also if we can

         11  actually give some as well. I would definitely love

         12  to do that. Thank you, Madam Chair. Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         14  Council Member Katz.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you, Madam

         16  Chair. I have a few questions. I don't think it will

         17  take long. First off, maybe I should know this and I

         18  apologize if I should. Does this legislation mimic

         19  the smoke alarm law that is now in effect in New

         20  York. This would be exactly pretty much the same as

         21  the smoke alarm law that is now standing in the City

         22  of New York. Correct?

         23                 MR. KRAMER: What we have to do here

         24  is that we have to within, I think, it is 45 days

         25  adopt standards for the specific devices that will
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          2  be considered compliant with this law.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: But basically,

          4  it's also multi- dwellings, a private home, if you

          5  rent it out as opposed --

          6                 MR. KRAMER: There are many parallels,

          7  but the placement of the detectors actually is

          8  different from what that's set forth in the smoke

          9  detectors. You put a CO detector in somewhat

         10  different location. That will also be the subject of

         11  rules that the Department will issue.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right now, smoke

         13  alarms nor carbon monoxide is required for a private

         14  home that I live in myself. Correct?

         15                 MR. KRAMER: I believe that smoke

         16  detectors are required --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: In your private

         18  home?

         19                 MR. KRAMER: -- In all residential

         20  bedrooms. All where sleeping quarters, whether it be

         21  private or a multiple dwelling.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I don't know the

         23  answer. This legislation is not -- I wouldn't be

         24  required in my private home. Because I was reading

         25  the briefing and it wasn't clear to me. Okay. Can I
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          2  just ask a very odd question then? I'd like your

          3  answer just because it affected me personally. My

          4  boiler was broken during the summer. Mine. I called

          5  Keyspan to get it fixed. When they were there, they

          6  told me since my boiler from 1930, I have one of

          7  those old clunkers, they told me they had to turn my

          8  gas off. I asked why. They said because the carbon

          9  monoxide was very high coming out of the boiler. I

         10  said, but if I never called you to fix the boiler,

         11  you wouldn't be telling me that. Right.

         12                 I guess my question is, once you

         13  realized that there's a carbon monoxide problem in

         14  your home, number one, what level does it have to be

         15  in order to be a real problem. Number two, the gas

         16  companies, what are the regulations now, if you

         17  know, that requires them to shut your gas off.

         18  Number three, what stops me then if I can't afford

         19  to get my boiler fixed from just never calling. And

         20  I don't know if there's an easy answer to that. But

         21  what did occur to me is that were I to be and

         22  fortunately, thank God, at my age, I'm not, were I

         23  to be in the financial shape where I could not have

         24  fixed my -- what would have happened? Is there

         25  programs that could have helped me fixed my boiler?
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          2  Or are people just not going to call to get them

          3  fixed?

          4                 MR. KRAMER: There are three questions

          5  you asked. I'll try to answer them.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I'm glad you got

          7  questions out of that because I wasn't sure if I got

          8  them out of that.

          9                 MR. KRAMER: The specific levels of

         10  danger, I don't have them at the tip of my fingers.

         11  I can give you if we speak afterwards, I can give

         12  you a couple of websites where the consumer product

         13  safety commission and USEPA have actually set forth

         14  their levels that they recommend action be taken.

         15  They are both a specific amount of CO that's in the

         16  air and from the length of time it's there. Which is

         17  the way the CO detector works. It's somewhat

         18  different from a smoke detector which is simply when

         19  activated by light essentially. It's somewhat

         20  different. And the levels vary depending upon the

         21  occupancy and the length of time which the CO is

         22  measured.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I'm most

         24  concerned just so you know, obviously, for me any

         25  level was not appropriate or not acceptable. My
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          2  question really was at what point do you think its

          3  safe? Or what point do they just say, we're going to

          4  shut your gas down. It's now December. I'm curious

          5  how you decide that.

          6                 MR. KRAMER: From listening to you

          7  speak, I believe they probably were not measuring CO

          8  level in your home but rather the level of

          9  combustion in the furnace itself.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I knew that.

         11                 MR. KRAMER: More complete combustion

         12  in the furnace, the less CO is produced. And I'm not

         13  familiar with Keyspan's guidelines. They are

         14  regulated by the public service commission. But I

         15  presume there are acceptable industry standards and

         16  if there's not complete combustion, clearly the

         17  safest thing to do, sounds like is turning it off so

         18  as to provide a good incentive to the homeowner or

         19  the landlord to get it fixed before putting lives at

         20  stake.

         21                 Thirdly, as to your question as to

         22  whether or not there are assistance programs

         23  available to homeowners in order to get boilers

         24  fixed, I would have to turn that over to HPD and

         25  they're not here at the table. But again, those type
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          2  of programs tend to be administered by HPD and not

          3  by the Buildings Department.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you.

          5  There's no representative from HPD? There's someone

          6  going to be coming up after, so we'll ask the same

          7  questions. But you do, Madam Chair, my concern is

          8  not whether I know the levels. My concern really was

          9  at what level does the Buildings Department or

         10  whoever it is come in and just basically say the

         11  carbon monoxide level is too high. We're shutting it

         12  down. I guess, what can one do really if the gas is

         13  turned off in the middle of winter. That was really

         14  my concern. We'll talk to HPD about that, I guess,

         15  when they come up.

         16                 I would assume that my question was

         17  really more from private homeowners as well. I'm not

         18  sure that HPD would handle that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Well, they

         20  would if there was a complaint.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay. My final

         22  question is who does one call when one of these

         23  alarms go off? Do you call 911?

         24                 MR. JACKSON: Yes, you would call 911

         25  and the Fire Department would respond and we carry
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          2  our own portable carbon monoxide detectors. We make

          3  a survey of the building to determine accurately if

          4  what the levels were and take the appropriate

          5  action. Have the utility company respond. Ventilate.

          6  Check the adjoining buildings. Require EMS to

          7  respond to treat any person who may have problems as

          8  a result of exposure.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay. So the

         10  Fire Department comes and they work with the utility

         11  company to shut things down? Once 911 is called, the

         12  Fire Department is called, they come in. They survey

         13  the situation. They determine that yes, indeed,

         14  there is a problem. And then you reach out to the

         15  utilities?

         16                 MR. JACKSON: Yes, the utility company

         17  would be a part of the required response and our

         18  normal mode would be to immediately at finding CO

         19  levels in the building, we would shut off the

         20  heating system to that building. As the follow-up,

         21  being the experts, the utility company would have to

         22  determine if in fact that device was defective or if

         23  there was some problem with the flue.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Councilwoman,

          3  we have Vito here from HPD. He is shaking his head

          4  that he could respond to your question. And you will

          5  introduce yourself when you get on the mike.

          6                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MUSTACELLO:

          7  Sure. My name is Vito Mustacello (phonetic). I'm the

          8  Associate Commissioner for Enforcement Services at

          9  HPD. In response to your question with respect to

         10  who can provide assistance, if its a tenant-occupied

         11  building, an apartment building or even a one-family

         12  that's tenant occupied, if the owner does not comply

         13  with the violations that we issue to restore heat

         14  and to correct the condition, then we can through

         15  our emergency repair program perform the necessary

         16  repairs. Bill the owner for the repairs and if the

         17  owner doesn't pay, place a lien on the property.

         18                 If it's a privately owned owner

         19  occupied residential building with no tenants, there

         20  are a variety of loan programs that are also

         21  available.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: A variety of

         23  what?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Loans.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Loans.
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          2                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MUSTACELLO:

          3  Loan programs, correct.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Madam Chair,

          5  this is my issue. If you have a smoke damage in a

          6  house or a fire damage, there is at least insurance

          7  to cover it. Here there isn't that. So, now all of a

          8  sudden you have a very, very risky situation in your

          9  home that's obviously deadly. And the question is,

         10  if I can't afford to fix it, I'm left with two

         11  choices. Well, I'm actually not even left with a

         12  choice. The gas company shuts you down. So, what

         13  happens in December or thank God, mine was shut

         14  down. By the way, mine was shut down for a week. But

         15  it was in the middle of the summer. The question is

         16  really I think this is a great piece of legislation.

         17  I'm just a little worried with the follow- up on how

         18  one gets it done if they can't afford to get it done

         19  immediately. Even a loan program would take time in

         20  order to get the loans, I would assume.

         21                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MUSTACELLO:

         22  Well, we certainly can expedite loans given the

         23  circumstances. And there's also other programs

         24  available through other agencies. For instance,

         25  protective services for adults through HRA is
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          2  another avenue that possibly could provide

          3  assistance.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: May I make

          5  suggestion that when this legislation passes, that

          6  when you're writing the regulations, at least

          7  there's some sort of education process on how one

          8  can get the loans and get financial assistance for

          9  it. Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I don't know

         11  if you asked this question that was answered because

         12  at some point I was trying to figure out who was

         13  going to answer your question. I think one of the

         14  issues you raised and again I don't know if any of

         15  you can answer this, is there a point with CO -- I

         16  mean, is there a level at which it's more dangerous

         17  or less dangerous or is it always dangerous as long

         18  as it is being admitted. At what point is it

         19  dangerous? Is it always dangerous?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I was getting at

         21  that, Madam Chair. Do they just shut you down no

         22  matter what or are there certain levels?

         23                 MR. KRAMER: I'll be glad to supply to

         24  you -- there is some excellent site articles on this

         25  that I have available at the office that was
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          2  produced by the Consumer Product Safety Commission

          3  and USEPA which explains the different level of

          4  safety or the different standards which they have

          5  established for different types of exposures. There

          6  is a work place exposure. A residential exposure.

          7  They have different levels which I believe are based

          8  in part on epidemiologic studies having to do with

          9  the length of time which a person is going to be

         10  exposed. The detectors are pre- set at the factory

         11  to go off the longer the exposure time, even if it's

         12  a very low level which might well be safe for one

         13  hour or two hours, but not something you would want

         14  to sleep with. And so the detector would go off. For

         15  example, I'll pick an arbitrary number at 70 parts

         16  per million over a 24 hour period.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: The process

         18  would be to have a detector in your home, the

         19  detector goes off, you call 911. They come,

         20  hopefully, immediately, make whatever determination

         21  and they would call the gas company or the Fire

         22  Department or we don't know this yet until --

         23                 MR. KRAMER: 911, the Fire Department

         24  will come. As it was explained, the Fire Department

         25  will immediately shut off the utilities and will
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          2  attempt to locate the source of the CO. Whether or

          3  not it could be a garage next door or it could be

          4  the furnace, could be a fuel oil burning. They will

          5  turn it off or it could be a gas provided by Keyspan

          6  and they would shut off the source. The owners would

          7  then be responsible for getting a qualified

          8  technician in the next day to repair the appliance.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         10  Councilwoman James.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Good afternoon,

         12  gentlemen. With regards to enforcement, can you just

         13  educate me about how this proposed law would be

         14  enforced?

         15                 MR. KRAMER: Essentially, it will be a

         16  two- step process. First, we will be adopting

         17  regulations which will set forth the regulations and

         18  then the three different agencies. The HPD, the

         19  Buildings Department and the Fire Department will be

         20  under the bill are authorized to issue violations if

         21  these detectors are not installed in the same way as

         22  smoke detectors.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Is it subject

         24  to some inspection? Some monthly, excuse me, yearly

         25  inspection?
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          2                 MR. KRAMER: There's no provision for

          3  yearly inspection in the bill.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: This is

          5  self-regulation, I guess.

          6                 MR. KRAMER: And complaint driven.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And complaint

          8  driven.

          9                 With regards to compliance, has the

         10  agency considered creating a fund for individuals

         11  who are indigent or on fixed incomes for compliance

         12  purposes?

         13                 MR. KRAMER: It's not provided for in

         14  the bill. Both the Fire Department and the HPD

         15  mentioned --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: They mentioned

         17  loans. Are there going to be any grants?

         18                 MR. KRAMER: It's not provided for in

         19  the bill. But I'm sure, as the Fire Department

         20  mentioned, they would be glad to receive free

         21  devices for distribution essentially to homeowners

         22  who cannot afford to comply or for tenants can't

         23  afford to repair.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: That's pursuant

         25  to a member initiative. Is there anything that
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          2  you're doing on your own volition to fund a program

          3  to provide this device to individuals who are

          4  indigent seniors or low-income families?

          5                 MR. JACKSON: The Fire Department, the

          6  Fire Safety Education Fund does seek donations from

          7  private industry to assist us either in the form of

          8  providing, in the past, smoke detectors or providing

          9  the funds to purchase them. So, similarly with this,

         10  we would use the same initiative to reach out to

         11  these people to assist us in this matter and provide

         12  for those who cannot provide for themselves.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: I appreciate

         14  that. I'm just looking for the City of New York to

         15  perhaps to kick in some funds to establish a Doe

         16  program or Doe fund.

         17                 One of the provisions in here talks

         18  about the fact an owner would not be obligated to

         19  keep and maintain a device if, in fact, one is

         20  rendered inoperable during the occupancy of such

         21  dwelling unit. And the rendering of it inoperable,

         22  which cases me concern. If, in fact, the device is

         23  rendered inoperable during one's occupancy, is the

         24  onus now on the tenant or not? There's just no

         25  device in the home.
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          2                 MR. KRAMER: My understanding under

          3  the bill is the tenant's obligation to replace a

          4  device which becomes inoperable after the landlord

          5  has installed the initial device during the tenancy.

          6  And then at the end of the lease, it would be

          7  landlord's obligation --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Right, exactly.

          9                 MR. KRAMER: -- To install a new one.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: I'll see --

         11                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MUSTACELLO: I

         12  believe there was a distinction whether or not if it

         13  was a manufactured defect or it was just due to

         14  neglect or carelessness.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Well, I'll read

         16  it more carefully. It doesn't appear to be any

         17  language to that effect. But I'll look at it more

         18  carefully. Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

         20  Member Rivera, I'm trying to find an answer to your

         21  question in the legislation and after Council Member

         22  talks.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Thank you,

         24  once again, Madam Chair. I have a very quick follow-

         25  up question. In terms of the funding that you would
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          2  like the City Council to provide, if it doesn't come

          3  from the overall City Council budget but it comes

          4  from individual discretionary budget, like for

          5  instance, if I gave $10,000 to buy CO detectors,

          6  would that only go to my district or would that go

          7  to the general population and who makes that

          8  decision? If I wanted to do a pilot program in my

          9  district.

         10                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MUSTACELLO: I

         11  think that we would work with you in terms of

         12  appropriate location and distribution. We have a

         13  variety of programs that go to all different areas

         14  of the City. I'm sure we can work something out in

         15  terms of that.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Okay. Thank

         17  you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: We've also

         19  been joined by Council Member Robert Jackson and

         20  Councilwoman Diana Reyna and Councilman James Oddo.

         21  Councilwoman James --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: In the

         24  legislation, it does say that the tenant once the

         25  device is installed by the landlord, the tenant has
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          2  to keep and maintain such device. Whether it needs

          3  batteries -- if you look on page four of the

          4  legislation. The bottom of the page and then keep

          5  going over to page five. Okay? Do we have anymore --

          6  go ahead.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Is there a

          8  notice provision in this bill with regards to that

          9  responsibility? The responsibility of the tenant?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: The owner is

         11  responsible for posting it.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: For posting it?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: In the lobby

         14  or common area.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Posting the

         16  requirement, is the owner also required within that

         17  provision to inform the tenant that in fact the

         18  device is rendered inoperable, et cetera, that the

         19  responsibility then falls upon the tenants shoulder?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Yes. If it's

         21  not in the legislation, that's some of the stuff

         22  that will be determined by the agencies when they

         23  put those regulations together.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Councilwoman
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          2  Reyna.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you,

          4  Madam Chair. I just have one specific question. Has

          5  there been any dialogue with the State Department of

          6  Insurance as far as discounts are concerned for

          7  homeowners or building owners, property owners in

          8  general?

          9                 MR. JACKSON: The Fire Department is

         10  not aware if any conversation took place relative to

         11  that.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Is it possible

         13  for at least an initial dialogue to take place from

         14  specifically the Fire Department? The Administration

         15  as a whole in order to be able to give homeowners an

         16  incentive to be able to say at the end of the day,

         17  I'm getting back a discount providing further safety

         18  from my tenants. Or even from my own family.

         19                 MR. KRAMER: It sounds like an

         20  excellent idea. It sounds very parallel to the idea

         21  to the discounts which is provided for some

         22  homeowners who have fire suppression systems,

         23  sprinklers and what not and also for burglar alarms.

         24  We'll be glad to mention it to them and see whether

         25  or not they have an actuarial or other basis on
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          2  which to give a discount for this.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you.

          4  Madam Chair, I don't know if we're able to as a

          5  Committee send out a letter letting them know that

          6  we would support some type of discount or if they

          7  can start looking into this. Pursuant that this law

          8  passes, it would be interesting to find out how they

          9  can be a player in making sure that we enhance some

         10  type of incentive at their level so that homeowners

         11  feel this is for the best interest of the City of

         12  New York and its residents.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: We'll look

         14  into it.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Do we have

         17  any other questions? We don't have anybody else

         18  testifying on this? So, that concludes the hearing

         19  on this bill. We'll move forward to the awning bill.

         20  And Steve, you can stay right where you are.

         21                 I would just like to add that the New

         22  York Oil Heating Association along with ConEdison

         23  has submitted testimony although they're not

         24  speaking at the hearing today. But we have their

         25  testimony to be included in the record. Mike Weil,
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          2  are you here somewhere? Mike Weil. So, we have

          3  Stephen Kramer from the Department of Buildings and

          4  we have Mike Weil from the New York City Department

          5  of City Planning. Steve, do you want to start?

          6                 MR. KRAMER: Sure. Good afternoon,

          7  Chair Provenzano and members of the Committee. As

          8  you know, my name is Stephen Kramer, the Chief of

          9  Staff of the City Department of Buildings. Thank you

         10  for the opportunity to testify in support of Intro

         11  272A.

         12                 Stated briefly, 272A proposes to

         13  extend for at least two and a half years the six

         14  month moratorium imposed by Local Law 44 of '03. On

         15  the imposition of penalties for violations written

         16  for awnings erected without a permit and for awnings

         17  that violate certain provisions of the zoning

         18  resolution except where public safety would be

         19  comprised.

         20                 Like Local Law 44, Intro 272A is the

         21  product of extensive discussion concerning the

         22  difficult issues surrounding the various regulations

         23  involving awning signage and is designed to provide

         24  to the Department of City Planning adequate time to

         25  fully study these issues.
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          2                 The bill before you today strikes a

          3  balance between the interest of those concerned with

          4  and those affected by the Zoning Resolutions various

          5  awning provisions. In addition the further study

          6  period for City Planning, the bill calls for a

          7  public education campaign to be conducted by the

          8  Department of Buildings covering zoning amendments

          9  that may result from City Planning's and this

         10  Council's actions.

         11                 We think that public education will

         12  be the key in the long run to both achieving

         13  compliance with these technical rules and to

         14  achieving greater public acceptance of enforcement

         15  of any new provisions that may be adopted. We will

         16  continue to work with the various block

         17  associations, community boards and business

         18  improvement districts on an outreach campaign to

         19  extend to the public's knowledge of these highly

         20  intricate and technical rules. The Department is

         21  pleased to help perform this important function, a

         22  task it has been performing since the enactment of

         23  Local Law 44 last year. Thank you for the

         24  opportunity to address this bill and City Planning

         25  has some additional testimony on the proposal.
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          2                 MR. WEIL: Good afternoon, Chair

          3  Provenzano and members of the Committee. I'm Mike

          4  Weil and I'm Director of Zoning and Urban Design at

          5  the Department of City Planning.

          6                 Last fall after the passage of Local

          7  Law 44, the Department with cooperation of the

          8  Department of Buildings, surveyed signs located on

          9  awnings along 16 commercial blockfaces in C1, C2 and

         10  C4 districts located within all five boroughs in

         11  order to determine their level of compliance with

         12  the existing zoning regulations.

         13                 Within the survey areas, there were a

         14  total of 166 commercial establishments. Of these

         15  166, 118 establishments, 71 percent of them had

         16  awnings with signs on them. The study included

         17  systematic measurements, photographic documentation

         18  and analysis of nearly 200 establishments to assess

         19  how these signs compared with the zoning rules that

         20  govern them.

         21                 At the conclusion of the survey, the

         22  Department found that approximately four percent of

         23  the surveyed awning signs actually complied with the

         24  zoning regulations. The signs were analyzed for

         25  compliance on the four rules that are stipulated in
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          2  the regulations which are (1) that the signs be non-

          3  illuminated; (2) the total service area of the signs

          4  located on the awnings not exceed 12 square feet;

          5  (3) that sign lettering not exceed 12 inches in

          6  height and (4) that signs include no copy other than

          7  the name or address of the establishment.

          8                 The results of this survey clearly

          9  suggest the zoning law governing signs on awnings

         10  deserve review to formulate a set of rules that are

         11  clear, predictable and simple to enforce. As we

         12  consider new rules or some tweaking of the existing

         13  regulations, it is paramount that the fundamental

         14  goal of protecting the public realm from the

         15  onslaught of advertising is preserved.

         16                 As the Department moves forward in

         17  examining a range of solutions over the next several

         18  months, we will reach out to the many stakeholders

         19  involved, many of whom are here today, to reach

         20  consensus on regulations. This consensus should

         21  strive to balance the goal of protecting the public

         22  realm from a blitz of commercial signs with a set of

         23  rules that provide a clear, reasonable means of

         24  advertising that assure small businesses their

         25  livelihoods and that can be enforced in an efficient
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          2  and fair way.

          3                 The Administration supports Intro 272

          4  as a means to study, refine and put forward a

          5  revised set of regulations governing signs on

          6  awnings. During the period of moratorium, the

          7  Department will work with our partner agencies

          8  including the Departments of Buildings and Small

          9  Business Services and constituents, such as small

         10  business groups, Business Improvement Districts and

         11  neighborhood associations and civic organizations to

         12  assist us with arriving at a solution that balances

         13  the goals that we've identified. Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         15  We've also been joined by Council Member Gail

         16  Brewer. In your testimony, it's kind of alarming

         17  that four percent of the surveyed signs complied. I

         18  would venture to say this is the result of years and

         19  years and years and years of no enforcement.

         20                 MR. KRAMER:  Well, the Department of

         21  Buildings have --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: So, people

         23  just got braver and braver and braver and put up

         24  signs with more stuff.

         25                 MR. KRAMER: The Department of
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          2  Building has gone out. Obviously, it's not the

          3  highest priority compared to the safety related

          4  provisions of the building code which we enforce. We

          5  have gone out on a complaint- driven basis. But

          6  obviously a very small proportion of businesses are

          7  aware of these provisions particularly in all their

          8  intricacy. From prohibitions to having fax numbers

          9  and telephone numbers and what have you on the signs

         10  as the rules currently exist.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Worse than

         12  that. They've got pictures and I mean, don't get me

         13  started. Now at the moratorium, the moratorium is

         14  that you are not giving out violations for awnings

         15  that don't comply. But if I own a business and I

         16  want to put up an awning, I must still comply with

         17  the present regulations.

         18                 MR. KRAMER: You still are required to

         19  get a permit. But the moratorium actually provides

         20  that -- prevents ECB from imposing a monetary

         21  penalty.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: There are

         23  these four rules that were outlined by City

         24  Planning. I must abide by those regulations if I'm

         25  going to put up an awning today?
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          2                 MR. KRAMER: As a technical matter,

          3  you are. But there's no penalty if you don't.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: That's kind

          5  of goofy. So, we're in sort of a limbo right now.

          6  Before that, before the moratorium, if you went to

          7  buildings to get a permit to put up an awning, was I

          8  told that these were the regulations and you have to

          9  comply with this?

         10                 MR. KRAMER: Yes, you were and that

         11  continues to be the case today. If you were to put a

         12  new awning and to get a permit and particularly if

         13  you went to a company that is familiar with the

         14  regulations and wanted to comply with some of the

         15  licensed sign hangers, for example, they would

         16  inform you of what's legal and what's not. And to

         17  get a permit today, you would still have to comply.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: You would

         19  have to comply?

         20                 MR. KRAMER: In order to get a permit.

         21  But there would be as I said, there's effectively no

         22  penalty the way the moratorium legislation is

         23  drafted.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay. Mike,

         25  you kind of outlined what should be happening during
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          2  this moratorium to get us to the point of figuring

          3  out what the awnings would say. And you said you

          4  were going to be including Department of Buildings

          5  and Small Business Service, constituents, groups,

          6  blah, blah, blah. Do you have any idea what kind of

          7  a time frame we're looking at? I know the moratorium

          8  is two years. But I have to say, personally, I think

          9  it's too long. But do you have any kind of a time

         10  frame?

         11                 MR. WEIL: Generally a study like this

         12  would take about nine months to a year. But then

         13  that two years also includes the approval process so

         14  that it has to go through the adoption period.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: But the

         16  moratorium has already been in place for six months

         17  prior to January.

         18                 MR. WEIL: Right.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: So, has there

         20  been any movements so far?

         21                 MR. WEIL: We've outlined an approach.

         22  We haven't actually done the work.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I'm sorry.

         24                 MR. WEIL: We've outlined an approach.

         25  We decided what we're going to do to reach
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          2  consensus, to attempt to reach consensus. But we

          3  haven't specifically undertaking the work. What

          4  we've done is laid out the steps that we're going to

          5  engage in, in order to come up with a recommended

          6  solution.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Do you have

          8  any idea when this is really going to start?

          9                 MR. WEIL: We can start now actually.

         10  But it should take nine months, maybe a year. And

         11  then there's at least the six or seven month

         12  approval process.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: And then

         14  Buildings have six months to educate or whatever?

         15                 MR. WEIL: Those could overlay.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay. That's

         17  true. Diana Reyna, you have --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Madam Chair, I

         19  just had a question. On the four specifications that

         20  are listed here, it says the signs are non-

         21  illuminated. The signs have a total surface area

         22  that does not exceed 12 square feet. Sign lettering

         23  does not exceed 12 inches in height and the signs

         24  include no copy other than the name and address of

         25  the establishment. Are these specifics going to be
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          2  amended so that a telephone number, I would think is

          3  the most essential component of information for a

          4  business. How is it that we're going to limit the

          5  requirement to just a name and an address? These are

          6  parts of the amendments?

          7                 MR. WEIL: No, what's listed is the

          8  current regulations. So, one thing that might be

          9  done at the end of the day, might be proposed, is

         10  that there not be a control on copy beyond what's

         11  required of copy for any sign. You could have any

         12  information on the awning as long as it is related

         13  to a size limit or some of the other criteria. We

         14  could relax the copy regulations. It could be as

         15  simple as simply allowing the telephone to be added

         16  to the things that are already allowed. Or it might

         17  be to get out of the copy business altogether.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: The education

         19  process that you're going through now began six

         20  months ago or it's just continuing for two years?

         21                 MR. KRAMER: We won't embark on an

         22  education process until the new rules are concrete.

         23  Until we actually know -- in other words, we're not

         24   -- although we actually are engaging to some extent

         25  in an education process now. When an inspector goes
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          2  out on a complaint and sees a nonconforming awning,

          3  he leaves a fact sheet with the owner or the actual

          4  occupant which explains which provisions of the

          5  Zoning Resolution are violated. But we just don't

          6  issue a summons.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: But if we're

          8  changing those specifications, they're not in

          9  violation?

         10                 MR. KRAMER: Well, they are in

         11  violation currently. But what we don't want to do is

         12  start a new education campaign with, let's say, with

         13  the community boards and the block associations on

         14  rules that we believe have a high likelihood of

         15  being changed within a two year period. We're

         16  essentially holding back. We conducted actually a

         17  fairly extensive outreach program over the last two

         18  or three years before the moratorium reaching out to

         19  the business improvement districts and the block

         20  associations of what the existing rules were. And it

         21  was interesting. Some block associations were

         22  adamantly opposed to enforcement of the rules and

         23  regulations and some bids were adamantly in favor.

         24  The City Planning process will attempt to bring

         25  those two different points of view together. And
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          2  that point, we'll embark on our education process.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I guess I'm

          4  trying to understand if I have a business, I'm going

          5  to receive a notification telling me under the

          6  current law, I'm not adhering to what the

          7  regulations call for. But, at the moment, you're

          8  undergoing certain changes of the rules that will

          9  eventually include what you're doing wrong now.

         10                 MR. WEIL: May include.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: May include.

         12                 MR. WEIL: Depending on the change.

         13  It's sort of like what's being issued now. It's a

         14  warning ticket. This is how it violates. If you were

         15  going to be punished for this violation, this is

         16  what you would punished on. But there's no

         17  punishment.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: But now all of

         19  it, once the law has been changed to the amendments

         20  that will be allowed or not allowed, may include

         21  just what they're violating now. Or may not.

         22                 MR. WEIL: Right. And there's no

         23  actual violation issued. It's like not you can go

         24  back --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: There's no
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          2  financial cost burden. I understand that component.

          3  But it just seems like we're going to be confusing

          4  the store owner or the business owner over and over

          5  again.

          6                 MR. KRAMER: We try not to actually --

          7  it's when an inspector goes out and he sees a

          8  violation. He's under an obligation under the

          9  Department rules to note the observed violations

         10  even if no summons is issued. But, in fact, we are

         11  not going out. If he is called out to a particular

         12  site for a different reason and he observes the

         13  violation, he would -- otherwise we would not be

         14  sending an inspector out right now for an awning

         15  violation when we know that the awning violations

         16  are in flux. So, in fact, it's not a very large

         17  outreach campaign and I think that's a good point

         18  that you made.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Just so that I

         20  can go back to my district and understand and be

         21  able to translate this information, if you've gone

         22  and surveyed zoning district C1, C2 and C4, is it

         23  possible for me to get that information as to what

         24  the outcome of those zoning districts within Council

         25  district 34 so that I'm able to communicate with
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          2  these businesses? Or be able to know what exactly

          3  has been targeted? What was not within the law? What

          4  will be or just an assessment survey?

          5                 MR. WEIL: We did representative block

          6  faces in some of those districts. It's not a tally

          7  for all C1 districts or all C2 districts. It's of

          8  the ones that we looked at. These are the

          9  percentages.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I see. You

         11  wouldn't know --

         12                 MR. WEIL: There are specific block --

         13  we have that information for specific block faces

         14  and they are of those three designations. But I

         15  wouldn't know it for all the C1 districts in your

         16  councilmanic district.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I see. But you

         18  did take survey of those specific zoning districts

         19  in all five boroughs?

         20                 MR. WEIL: We looked at 16 block faces

         21  which is from corner to corner and we made sure that

         22  of the 16 some were located in each borough and some

         23  were located in each of those zoning districts.

         24  Because those are the retail strip districts.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Of course. And
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          2  will you be coming out with those results or that's

          3  what this --

          4                 MR. WEIL: We have. We have those

          5  results.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And you've

          7  already shared that with us or --

          8                 MR. WEIL: We have in various

          9  forenotes and can continue to.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So, I will

         11  speak to Council Member Katz because I don't sit on

         12  the Land Use Committee. I will hopefully share that

         13  information with her. But I just wanted to touch

         14  base with that specific point because I'm not to

         15  sure how to go back to my district and address this

         16  issue if in fact a store owner were to come to me

         17  and tell me I've been issued this warning. But isn't

         18  it true there's a moratorium? What am I suppose to

         19  do six months from now? When are the final

         20  regulations going to come out so that I can adhere

         21  to what they're asking me to do? Is there an

         22  expected date for --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: There's also

         24  going to be after all the folks get together and

         25  come up with the regulations, there's going to be a
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          2  six month education period run by the Department of

          3  Buildings. They will be talking to businesses

          4  letting them know these are now the new regulations

          5  and these are how you have to abide by them. If you

          6  don't it, you will summoned, blah, blah, blah. So,

          7  in addition or within hopefully the time of the

          8  moratorium, they will get finished doing their

          9  regulations. Department of Buildings will do their

         10  six months of education and after that time

         11  everything goes into effect. So, there not just --

         12  well the time frame right now is the moratorium

         13  which is what the legislation is asking for the two

         14  year moratorium. Which the clock has already started

         15  ticking on because it started January 1.

         16                 MR. WEIL: Right. So, the two years is

         17  for the additional study work, proposing a solution.

         18  The formal review of that and an approval of

         19  solution and then the time to educate.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: As far as input

         21  is concerned, if I want to give input into that

         22  process, do I call City Planning? Do I call --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Or you could

         24  certainly just let the Committee know and we'll make

         25  sure that --

                                                            51

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 MR. WEIL: You certainly can do that

          3  directly with us, and also this will go through --

          4  it's not ULURP, but it is a ULURP-like process. So,

          5  it will go out to the Committee Boards. It is going

          6  to come back to the Commission and back to the

          7  Council. The final adoption is  through the Council.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Councilwoman

          9  Brewer.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I just think

         11  we're -- I'm sure I'm confused. But the timing, the

         12  bill that would give another two years for

         13  moratorium, has that passed?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: That's the

         15  bill where he --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right. So, in

         17  other words, when we're talking about the timing, it

         18  would only be a continual two- year moratorium if we

         19  pass this legislation. Is that correct?

         20                 MR. KRAMER: Right.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I thought we

         22  talking about as if it were a fate accompli.

         23                 MR. KRAMER: No.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay, thank

         25  you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: But you had a

          3  question. That was it.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I have more so a

          5  point of information which I was trying to but in

          6  before. Point of information. Land Use Committee is

          7  dealing with this issue quite a bit with the City

          8  Planning Commission. When it actually does get

          9  changed and we're using the word regulations, but

         10  that's not entirely true. When the law does get

         11  changed as to what are the appropriate requirements

         12  for awnings, that's going to go through zoning text

         13  amendments. Stop me when I'm wrong. And, therefore,

         14  it will go through the Land Use Committee. And

         15  that's basically how we've been dealing with it.

         16                 In the meantime, the enforcement

         17  issue is a problem. Therefore, the Buildings

         18  Committee is dealing with the enforcement layover.

         19  And that's really I think where a lot of this

         20  confusion is coming. We have had meetings with the

         21  City Planning Commission about the four percent

         22  compliance City- wide. I really am of the personal

         23  opinion that we don't need two years to be honest

         24  about it. I was advocating more to make the laws

         25  earlier and then give a few years in order for
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          2  businesses to become in compliant. But, I don't know

          3  what happened at this point. Either way, I think the

          4  process works. We need time in order to get people

          5  in compliant. There will be too many businesses out

          6  of compliant if we just sort of pass the law right

          7  now and do the zoning text change.

          8                 We are taking ideas and we've love to

          9  discuss it with anyone who has any ideas in their

         10  particular district. The City of New York is so

         11  different every single place. They took ten blocks

         12  on stats on these awnings and what was obvious is

         13  that every block was different. Some areas had phone

         14  numbers, descriptions of the businesses. Some areas

         15  used pictures more like the Chairwoman was talking

         16  about. It's very different. So, please let us know.

         17  But I just wanted to just sort of clarify why I

         18  think there's a little bit of confusion as far as

         19  what's going to happen.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Well, I'm

         21  happy to hear that you want to speed it up. Because

         22  I think the sooner we get these regulations or

         23  whatever the zoning changes done and over with. And

         24  to extend it years and years and years and have all

         25  this horrible looking stuff all over the City I
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          2  think is a constraint.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Just so the

          4  Committee and the City Planning Commission obviously

          5  was involved with the conversation and I'm not sure

          6  if they picked two years or not or Hiriam (phonetic)

          7  did or whoever it is. We had discussed and I don't

          8  really recall who is on what side of this argument

          9  that you could pass a law within whenever we are

         10  able to pass a law and then give the businesses time

         11  for compliance as it comes up.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Right.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I don't know

         14  what happened.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Within the

         16  law, we could say -- right.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Why don't we ask

         18  them? That's a good idea. You're right here. What do

         19  you think of the idea of passing the law a little

         20  earlier so that we actually get it through and then

         21  giving the businesses because as we discussed there

         22  is a lifetime for awnings. It's not like awnings

         23  last 25, 30 years at times. What do you think of

         24  that idea?

         25                 MR. WEIL: One of the possible
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          2  solutions that we have discussed is having a time to

          3  come into compliance so that you could adopt a law

          4  and then have a time period where you have to

          5  actually eat the law. That would allow for some more

          6  flexibility. Because there was no decision, we just

          7  decided it was safe to go for the longer period of

          8  time.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay. Thank you

         10  very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Also bearing

         12  in mind that we're going into April. So we've

         13  already used three months of the moratorium. At any

         14  rate, Gail because you didn't --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: The other

         16  question I have then is during this time period,

         17  whatever this time period is, why would anybody

         18  apply for anything? Because there's no -- just

         19  basically you could put anything you wish and then

         20  you would hope that the end of the study period,

         21  whenever that is, might or might not be part of your

         22  awning facade. Are you running into that? I don't

         23  know what store keepers are familiar with in terms

         24  of status?

         25                 MR. WEIL: Given the level of
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          2  compliance, it doesn't appear that people are being

          3  all that concerned about complying anyway.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: In the past.

          5  Right. The issue would be that they didn't

          6  necessarily comply before and until there's a real

          7  education process, they're not going to -- does

          8  anybody apply? I mean, do you have any applications

          9  at all for awnings? Just out of curiosity, is there

         10  a database of applications?

         11                 MR. KRAMER: I know that in the past

         12  we have certainly issued permits. But I don't have

         13  any figures available as to whether or not there's

         14  been a drop off in permit applications since the

         15  moratorium. I'll be glad to find out about that.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I'd be curious

         17  about that. Okay.

         18                 MR. WEIL: The other thing I note

         19  although this is actually more of the Department of

         20  Buildings issue, but awnings there's other things to

         21  do with awnings than just the sign and the copy.

         22  They have to properly mounted. They have to be safe.

         23  You don't want them blowing off and hitting people

         24  in a windstorm.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right.
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          2                 MR. WEIL: There are other reasons

          3  that you might wish to have a --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Permit.

          5                 MR. WEIL: -- Permit.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right. That

          7  was why I was wondering if people are applying for

          8  permits. So you can give us a database on that.

          9                 MR. KRAMER: I'll be glad to see if we

         10  can pull that out and if we can, I'll be glad to

         11  give it to you.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Do you also

         13  monitor historic districts that have awning issues?

         14  Obviously, that's a slightly different problem

         15  because they do have supposedly more --

         16                 MR. KRAMER: I don't believe that our

         17  business information system is capable of isolating

         18  historic districts. But I think probably most of us

         19  know that the Landmarks does enforce the separate

         20  set of regulations and I believe they are enforced

         21  quite effectively. You can walk down Reed Street and

         22  you can see that except for a couple of old signs

         23  that pre- date the historic district, virtually

         24  every awning on that street is compliant once you

         25  get --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I don't think

          3  that's true across the City. Is that something as

          4  time goes on, your database could include or

          5  collaborate cross- indexing with Landmarks?

          6                 MR. KRAMER: I think it's a very

          7  useful thing. We are in the process now of

          8  purchasing -- going through a very lengthy process

          9  of purchasing an upgraded database to the extent we

         10  can do that and conform it with, it would be

         11  extremely useful to us for many reasons so as not to

         12  actually have to hand key in every single address.

         13  The address for individual Landmarks are, of course,

         14  keyed into the Juli (phonetic).

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: That's

         16  different.

         17                 MR. KRAMER: That's why historic

         18  districts would be extremely useful.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you,

         20  Madam Chair.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Councilwoman

         22  James.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Good afternoon,

         24  gentlemen. As you know, in my district, Fort Green,

         25  Clinton Hill Prospect Heights, we've launched an
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          2  initiative to engage in some commercial

          3  revitalization. Along Myrtle Avenue, Washington

          4  Avenue, Vanderbilt Avenue. And this proposal would

          5  basically cast a blow to our community efforts to

          6  improve our community. I to share in the sentiments

          7  that have been expressed by my colleagues that this

          8  proposed moratorium for two years would be too long

          9  and that we should limit it to a lesser degree.

         10                 On Myrtle Avenue, again, Washington

         11  Avenue, Vanderbilt Avenue, we have a number of

         12  businesses that have sprung up and they have

         13  constructed awnings which I believe are non-

         14  conforming. So again, I to just wanted to share my

         15  sentiments that I think we should limit the amount

         16  of the moratorium because the non- enforcement

         17  issue, I think, is going to blow -- it's going to

         18  strike a serious blow in our efforts to beautify our

         19  community.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         21  Thank you very much.

         22                 MR. WEIL: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Vanessa

         24  Gruen, Kate Wood and Lisa Rosenthal. Whoever wants

         25  to start first, please do. Identify yourself and if
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          2  you have copies of your testimony.

          3                 MS. GRUEN: Good afternoon, my name is

          4  Vanessa Gruen. I represent the Municipal Arts

          5  Society. I just wanted to deliver this brief

          6  testimony and I thank you very much for allowing me

          7  to do that. But before I read from my prepared

          8  testimony, there is one thing that I want to say

          9  after listening to the Department of Buildings and

         10  City Planning is that whatever you decide, if you

         11  decide on the moratorium or not, but I do hope that

         12  the proposed solution is not then to grandfather

         13  every single sign that is now in violation and then

         14  just make it so that the new signage that goes up is

         15  the ones that will have to adhere to the new

         16  regulations that are written. I think this is a very

         17  dangerous step. The City has been -- there are so

         18  many signs out there that are grandfathered and so

         19  many regulations that have been grandfathered.

         20  Nobody knows which is a legal sign and which is a

         21  illegal sign. I really think that's part of the

         22  confusion that we've had over the years. I just want

         23  to reiterate on that point.

         24                 Basically, we feel that the general

         25  signage regulation on buildings is a very
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          2  complicated and volatile subject. But, what is at

          3  stake is the look and feel of the City's largest

          4  public space, our sidewalks. New York is a

          5  pedestrian City. Therefore, the look and feel of our

          6  sidewalks is the most prominent component in making

          7  this pedestrian experience pleasant for all. It is

          8  not fair for merchants and advertisers to hold our

          9  sidewalks hostage to their specific message.

         10                 The signage regulations for awnings

         11  and canopies are simple and straightforward. The

         12  Zoning Resolution restricts the allowable message,

         13  the name of the business, and the street address.

         14  Letters are not allowed to be more than 12 inches in

         15  height and any other type of signage is limited to

         16  the front of the building which is covered by a

         17  different set of rules. Non- compliance to the

         18  awnings and canopy rule is rampant as we just heard.

         19                 The Building Department has not

         20  judiciously enforced these rules and it appears that

         21  merchants have just copied their neighbors in order

         22  to even out their advertising advantage. If the

         23  Building Department wants to start enforcing the

         24  rules as now written, it is necessary for them to do

         25  it through a re- education of merchants so they
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          2  understand what the limitations are.

          3                 We've had a six month moratorium. Has

          4  this re- education not taken during this time frame?

          5  Has City Planning not undertaken the task of

          6  clarifying the awnings rules and to make them more

          7  enforceable? Why does the Council feel that

          8  confronting these complicated signage issues are

          9  best dealt with by using lengthy moratoriums? Over

         10  three years ago, the City Council voted on and

         11  approved new stricter regulations for signage on

         12  buildings. These regulations still don't have any

         13  rules written by the Buildings Department so no

         14  enforcement has taken place.

         15                 Meanwhile, signage is proliferating

         16  out of control in many of our most cherished

         17  neighborhoods and the advertising signage on awnings

         18  will no doubt increase during this proposed two-

         19  year moratorium. There is no reason to believe that

         20  the Buildings Department will be able to enforce in

         21  future illegal status quo when they have not been

         22  able to do so in the past.

         23                 We don't need moratoriums. We need

         24  City Planning and the City Council to face hard

         25  reality and enact some enforceable signage
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          2  regulations that can be understood by everyone and

          3  then we need the Buildings Department to go out and

          4  enforce it. Thank you very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          6  Before we continue, there seems to be a little

          7  conflict here. We only hear from one agency or one

          8  group and we have two people from Landmark West. Is

          9  he Helen or Heleen Sim? Okay. And then we have Kate

         10  Wood. So, the two of you have to figure out who is

         11  going to speak.

         12                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE:

         13  I'd like to take the opportunity to put some of the

         14  people that are not here --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Well, we

         16  would only allow one person from Landmark West to

         17  speak anyway.

         18                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: May I speak for

         19  myself?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: No. Kate

         21  Woods, are you Landmark West? Is that you?

         22                 MS. WOOD: I am the Director.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Do you want

         24  to go off and straighten this out?

         25                 MS. WOOD: I'll go ahead and speak on

                                                            64

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  behalf of both of us.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.

          4                 MS. WOOD: But I do want to say that

          5  Arlene Simon is the founder of Landmark West and has

          6  been absolutely central to our street scape

          7  improvement initiatives and retail assistant

          8  program. So, when I speak I'm really drawing very

          9  heavily on her experience in working with business

         10  owners to improve their store fronts and make their

         11  signage in compliance.

         12                 My name is Kate Wood. I am the

         13  Executive Director of Landmark West. I appreciate

         14  the opportunity to testify on this very important

         15  issue affecting the quality of life in our City's

         16  neighborhoods. I'm here along with a few colleagues

         17  from around the City. There are very many more who

         18  are deeply concerned about this issue who weren't

         19  able to make it this afternoon.

         20                 I want to urge the Council not to

         21  approve Intro 272. In a City of neighborhoods and

         22  pedestrians, few things have more impact on our

         23  daily lives than the quality of our streets and

         24  sidewalks. These are the preeminent public spaces of

         25  New York as Vanessa just said, and should not be
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          2  given over to private commercial enterprise in the

          3  form of overbearing advertising. The idea that a

          4  balance must be maintained forms the basis of

          5  countless commercial area of revitalization programs

          6  throughout the City.

          7                 These efforts often begin with

          8  removing visual clutter in the form of a illegal

          9  awnings, canopies and signs while rethinking store

         10  front design and window merchandising to attract

         11  more customers. To extend a moratorium that shelters

         12  business owners who have failed to comply with the

         13  law penalizes the business owners who do comply. And

         14  there are more of them than you might think. Just

         15  look at vibrant parts of Jackson Heights, Hamilton

         16  Heights, Myrtle Avenue and Fort Green, 34th Street

         17  and West 72nd Street on the upper west side which is

         18  my area. Their work testifies to the fact that the

         19  existing regulations when properly enforced are

         20  sound and need to be sustained.

         21                 Since 1997, Landmark West has

         22  sponsored a retail assistance program on West 72nd

         23  Street. I invite any of you to meet me to walk the

         24  street and see the tremendous transformation that's

         25  been wrought in partnership with the businesses, the
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          2  City Council, DOB and other City agencies by

          3  bringing signage and awnings into compliance. I have

          4  with me here a packet of before and after

          5  photographs which really give visual testimony to

          6  that fact. I will leave that here.

          7                 With the support of Gail Brewer and

          8  former Council Member Ronnie Eldridge (phonetic),

          9  the street has won awards from Commerce Bank and the

         10  National Trust for Historic Preservation

         11  demonstrating that the existing regulations really

         12  can be made to work for the benefit of the entire

         13  community.

         14                 Let me hasten to say that it wasn't

         15  an easy or an automatic process. A lot of hand

         16  holding was involved. I agree that New York needs a

         17  better system of enforcement and I would expect to

         18  be part of the public education program and would be

         19  honored to be part of that. But while we're working

         20  towards that better system, we simply cannot afford

         21  to suspend the existing enforcement rules.  Business

         22  owners must continue to be held accountable for

         23  following the law and for doing their part in

         24  protecting the quality of life of our communities.

         25  Thank you very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          3  Very interesting. Lisa Rosenthal.

          4                 MS. ROSENTHAL: Good afternoon. I'm

          5  Lisa Rosenthal. I'm the Associate Director of the

          6  34th Street Partnership. As you know, the 34th

          7  Street Partnership is the business improvement

          8  district that serves 32 blocks in the heart of

          9  midtown Manhattan.

         10                 It is our mission to improve the

         11  quality of life of our district. We have worked hard

         12  to eliminate crime, litter, graffiti and unsightly

         13  conditions within our borders. We've helped recruit

         14  the best commercial tenants and merchants to open up

         15  new businesses in our districts and to aid current

         16  retailers in making the best presentation to

         17  customers and to maximize opportunities.

         18                 Further, we have invested in

         19  streetscape amenities of undisputed quality. We feel

         20  that these efforts have helped make Midtown and

         21  especially the 34th Street district one of the most

         22  desirable places to visit, shop, work, live in all

         23  of New York City. We are grateful to Mayor Bloomberg

         24  and his Administration for their focus on qualify of

         25  life initiatives.
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          2                 With respect to Intro No. 275, while

          3  we appreciate and understand some of the issues of

          4  enforcement regarding awnings in other communities

          5  of New York City, we however feel that the building

          6  code and the Zoning Resolution of the City of New

          7  York should be enforced in total in our district as

          8  well as other business improvement districts and

          9  historic neighborhoods.

         10                 At the 34th Street Partnership, we

         11  work with retailers, in many cases even before they

         12  sign leases in our district to make sure that all

         13  their signage including awnings and storefronts is

         14  in compliance with the building code and the Zoning

         15  Resolution. Not only do we provide them with

         16  information, we offer them free- design services. If

         17  a merchant or property owner in our district

         18  installs non- compliant signage, it is frequently a

         19  deliberate act to flaunt the laws of the City of New

         20  York and not an act out of ignorance.

         21                 The Partnership has invested heavily

         22  over the years in public improvements, street

         23  furniture; informational and directional signage;

         24  horticultural amenities; design services; and

         25  outreach to merchants. We feel that these programs
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          2  have paid off in making the district one of the most

          3  desirable communities in all of New York City.

          4                 Unsightly signs and visual clutter

          5  might seem a trivial and minor annoyance. However,

          6  we have found when even the most minor zoning

          7  regulation is not enforced, bigger and more

          8  offensive infractions occur. Furthermore, the visual

          9  chaos if not addressed, spreads to neighboring

         10  properties. The rationale being, if he can do it, so

         11  can I. We can only stop building code and zoning

         12  infractions and the visual clutter it creates with

         13  swift enforcement.

         14                 The revival of our neighborhood has

         15  been fostered by it being clean, safe, and visually

         16  pleasing. Please help our community to continue to

         17  prosper by allowing the section 27- 147, section 32-

         18  653 and section 42- 542 to be fully enforced in our

         19  district.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you. I

         21  find your term visual chaos interesting. I'm going

         22  to steal that from you. Do we have any questions?

         23  Councilwoman Reyna?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I just want in

         25  your honest opinion, you're not against a moratorium
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          2  where we would want to go back to the rules or the

          3  regulations or whatever term you want describe it as

          4  to be able to say that a business, for instance, the

          5  telephone number. I find a telephone number on an

          6  awning is very important. To others, maybe it is

          7  not. But, we live in a day and age where we depend

          8  on that type of communication. I understand that we

          9  don't need two years to say, let's decide to allow

         10  telephone numbers on an awning. Two years is just an

         11  extended amount of time that is going to delay a

         12  process that's very much needed. So, I want to just

         13  get a clear understanding as to what it is that you

         14  do support and what is it that you don't support.

         15                 MS. ROSENTHAL: We can start in my

         16  district. In my district, which is 34th Street, we

         17  have -- it was interesting to listen to the

         18  testimony of the people from City Planning because

         19  clearly in my opinion they selectively chose the

         20  blocks to go look at to see which were non-

         21  compliant. Because is our district, I would say we

         22  probably have 95, 94 percent compliance. I mean we

         23  have high levels of compliance. And as I said in my

         24  testimony, those properties which are non-

         25  compliant, it's deliberate, in my opinion.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: You don't think

          3  it has anything to do with economics?

          4                 MS. ROSENTHAL: No, it's deliberate.

          5  They know. We've worked with them. We've educated

          6  them. It's not about economics. It's about a

          7  deliberate flaunting of the laws.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Within your

          9  area?

         10                 MS. ROSENTHAL: Within our area.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Okay.

         12                 MS. ROSENTHAL: Within our district.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: But in other

         14  areas?

         15                 MS. ROSENTHAL: I can't speak for

         16  other areas. I don't think the moratorium is

         17  necessary in Midtown. I don't think it's necessary

         18  in most business improvement districts. I don't

         19  think it's necessary in historic neighborhoods. I

         20  thought it was --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Do you see the

         22  opportunity to be legitimate to amend the

         23  regulations so that it can include, for instance,

         24  telephone number?

         25                 MS. ROSENTHAL: I think maybe as
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          2  everybody has said before, maybe the Zoning

          3  Resolution particularly when it comes to signage

          4  needs to be looked at. But it's very possible to

          5  look at this, to rewrite the laws and not have the

          6  moratorium.

          7                 MS. WOOD: I think you're going to

          8  find that a lot of the awnings that are out of

          9  compliance now, hopefully if we get the right zoning

         10  amendments would still be out of compliance. So,

         11  there aren't people who are going to be penalized by

         12  getting a violation now that wouldn't be penalized

         13  in two years. Because as I said in my testimony, I

         14  think that the existing zoning regulations while

         15  something like a telephone number, there might be a

         16  possibility that something like that could be

         17  included. But then you get on a slippery slope of

         18  what do you allow and what don't you allow.

         19                 The signage on awning regulations

         20  right now are very clear cut in that they allow the

         21  business name and the address and nothing else. Once

         22  you start allowing other types of information, it

         23  can snowball out of control and then we'll end up

         24  with something, I think, none of us want. But in

         25  terms of economics, this is a copy of Landmark West
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          2  newsletter from a couple of years ago where a

          3  business that had been on 72nd Street since the

          4  1930's actually -- absolutely, take a copy. Actually

          5  wrote a letter to us and said how much they

          6  appreciated the work that we've done. That they were

          7  skeptical at first because they thought why should I

          8  take down my awning if nobody else is. But then once

          9  they took down their awning, other people followed.

         10  It set a very positive tone. It evened the playing

         11  field so that in terms of economics -- the situation

         12  we have now is this downward spiral that is just

         13  self- defeating. Because if one person puts up a big

         14  awning, the next person puts up a bigger awning and

         15  nobody has a competitive advantage in that

         16  situation.

         17                 We want to return to basics so that

         18  people are attracted to businesses because of the

         19  services they provide. Because of the window display

         20  the have. Because of their courtesy to customers and

         21  because they have simple identifying signage that

         22  helps people find where they are. That's what we're

         23  in support of.

         24                 MS. GRUEN: I would say that a two-

         25  year moratorium just seems to be too long a time.
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          2  Because you're going to find so many abuses during

          3  the next two years. I mean everybody is going to

          4  take advantage of this moratorium and there's going

          5  to be sort of a wholesale signage all over the

          6  place. I don't think this is going to be

          7  advantageous to any of our struggling business

          8  community or neighborhoods. It's not going to help.

          9  I think if they had strong regulations that were

         10  enforced, they would be more pleasant. People would

         11  go there more often and I think it would be

         12  advantageous to the businesses in the long run. If

         13  everybody were forced to adhere to the current

         14  regulations.

         15                 I think a telephone number, I don't

         16  think that's difficult to add. I don't think that's

         17  going to hurt anybody. I just think that two years

         18  is too long. Because without any kind of regulations

         19  for two years, you're going to have all kinds of

         20  creative signs that are going to go up there and

         21  we're never going to get rid of them.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I appreciate

         23  your input.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         25  Thank all of you. Jerry Armer.
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          2                 MR. ARMER: Good afternoon, Chairman

          3  Provenzano and members of the Committee. Before I

          4  start what I prepared, I'd like to say that every

          5  time I come to the Council, I'm sort of perplexed.

          6  It says to check off in favor or not in favor of the

          7  Intro. There is sometimes a point where you write in

          8  the middle. It is the same at a Community Board or

          9  any public hearing. So, it's not something new.

         10                 My name is Jerry Armer. I'm Director

         11  of Services for the MetroTech Bid and the Fulton Law

         12  Improvement Association. The MetroTech Bid and the

         13  Fulton Law support the efforts of the Council to

         14  update an improved New York City Administrative Code

         15  and the Zoning Resolution as it relates to store

         16  signage.

         17                 However, we are reluctantly going to

         18  support the extension of the current moratorium as

         19  it relates to store awnings. For the last five

         20  years, the MetroTech BID through it's facade program

         21  has been working with merchants within the BID area

         22  to update the store signage and bring their signage

         23  up to code. To date, we have worked with over 50 BID

         24  merchants in the design and replacement of their

         25  signs. This program works. We also provide
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          2  incentives to them to offset the cost of signage.

          3                 However, this program is not the

          4  entire answer. There are merchants who don't want to

          5  work with us or who disregard the current signage

          6  regulations and knowing full well that there is no

          7  penalty involved. They put up signs that are too

          8  large. Extend too far out onto the sidewalk and are

          9  poorly designed. This, in turn, causes the

         10  neighborhood store to feel that to be seen they must

         11  have a sign that is even bigger. It is a race that

         12  no one wins except the sign makers.

         13                 We feel the current awning

         14  regulations need to be updated and they should allow

         15  for some additional information to be placed on the

         16  awnings. The MetroTech BID and Fulton Law

         17  Improvement Association would like to work with the

         18  Council and the Administration in re- writing the

         19  awning and signage regulations. We think that our

         20  experiences with our facade program or work with the

         21  merchants gives the unique insight into what's going

         22  on out on the street.

         23                 The MetroTech BID and Fulton Law

         24  Association are keenly aware of how important the

         25  well designed and attractive store signage is to the
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          2  success of the merchant on the street and to the

          3  overall shopping street. It is because of this

          4  awareness that we feel that we can help in

          5  developing regulations that would help everyone.

          6  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Do we have

          8  any questions? No. No questions?

          9                 MR. ARMER: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

         11  very much. Okay. That concludes our hearing. Thank

         12  you, gentlemen. It was nice to have you here. Both

         13  items that we heard today will be laid over. Thank

         14  you.

         15                 (Meeting Adjourned at 2:41 p.m.)

         16                 (Written testimony read into the

         17  record.)

         18

         19  Written testimony

             John H. Banks

         20  Vice President

             ConEdison

         21

         22

         23                 Con Edison welcomes this opportunity

         24  to comment on Intro 4A Local Law to amend the

         25  administrative code of the City of New York in
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          2  relation to requiring the installation of carbon

          3  monoxide detecting devices in buildings classified

          4  in occupancy groups G, H2, J1, J2 and J3.

          5                 We commend the City Council and your

          6  committee for addressing a problem that has had

          7  tragic consequences far too often in recent months

          8  here in New York City. In fact, the United States

          9  Consumer Product Safety Commission puts the number

         10  of fatalities in this country due to carbon monoxide

         11  poisoning at 200 a year with thousands of others

         12  hospitalized.

         13

         14                 Carbon monoxide is a colorless,

         15  odorless, and tasteless gas that is the result of

         16  incomplete combustion. Having no smell, taste, or

         17  color makes it vitally important for consumers to

         18  have detector/alarms to warn them of dangerous

         19  levels of carbon monoxide. However, it is also

         20  important for consumers to keep their oil burners

         21  and gas heating and cooking appliances in good

         22  repair and to know the appropriate ways to respond

         23  to the presence of carbon dioxide.

         24                 We commend the Council for including

         25  in Intro 4 the requirement to "...provide written
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          2  information regarding the testing and maintenance of

          3  carbon monoxide detecting devices to at least one

          4  adult occupant of each dwelling unit including, but

          5  not limited to, general information concerning

          6  carbon monoxide poisoning and what to do if a carbon

          7  monoxide detecting devices goes off. Such

          8  information may include material that is distributed

          9  by the manufacturer, material prepared by the

         10  Department of Buildings or material approved by the

         11  Department of Buildings..."

         12

         13

         14  Written testimony

             John D. Maniscalco

         15  Executive Vice President

             New York Oil Heating Association

         16

         17

         18                 My name is John Maniscalco, Executive

         19  Director of the New York Oil Heating Association, a

         20  64- year- old service organization that represents

         21  mostly family- owned home heating oil distributors,

         22  licensed oil burning equipment installers,

         23  professional engineers and architects located

         24  throughout the five boroughs of New York City.

         25                 I am writing to express my support
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          2  for Intro No. 4, requiring the installation of

          3  carbon monoxide detecting devices in New York City

          4  homes. The oil heating industry takes consumer

          5  safety very seriously. In addition to implementing

          6  the highest safety standards in our daily

          7  operations, we regularly encourage consumers to be

          8  responsible in their homes. We believe that carbon

          9  monoxide detecting devices can prove a valuable tool

         10  in this regard.

         11                 I am encouraged that the bill

         12  includes the distribution of written information

         13  regarding the testing and maintenance of carbon

         14  monoxide detecting devices. The bill's language

         15  allows for this material to include information

         16   "distributed by the manufacturer, material prepared

         17  by the Department of Buildings or material approved

         18  by the Department of Buildings."

         19                 However, I urge this Committee to

         20  include minimum standards for this written

         21  information, like designating 911 as the preferred

         22  contact number if a detector's alarm sounds.

         23                 According the Center for Disease

         24  Control, the U.S. Consumer Product Safety Commission

         25  and at least one major manufacturer of carbon
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          2  monoxide detectors, First Alert, in addition to

          3  immediately moving to fresh air or opening the

          4  windows, occupants are urged to call their emergency

          5  services provider.

          6                 Only a 911 operator is trained and

          7  equipped to handle such an emergency, which may

          8  required over- the- phone instructions and the

          9  dispatch of the appropriate emergency service units

         10  such as the Fire Department.

         11                 We cannot assume that New Yorkers

         12  know to call 911 when their carbon monoxide detector

         13  sounds. There is a reason why the saying goes "where

         14  there's smoke there's fire." If a smoke detector

         15  goes off, a quick check of the premises will

         16  indicate whether there is a fire that requires the

         17  attention of the Fire Department Carbon monoxide is

         18  odorless and colorless and therefore more difficult

         19  to assess. People need to know the facts and that

         20  911 is the only appropriate number to call in an

         21  emergency.

         22                 In conclusion, I applaud the Council

         23  for taking up this very important issue, but this

         24  bill will only be as effective as the response

         25  information that people have. Let's make sure we
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          2  have some minimum standards outlined in law. Thank

          3  you.

          4                 (Hearing concluded at 2:41 p.m.)
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          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, LORI SANTOMIERI, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 29th day of March 2004.
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